
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

June 14, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Jun 14 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jun 14 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jun 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Jun 21 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Jun 28 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jun 28 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jun 28 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
C. Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 

appreciation recent donations made to the Elkhart Community Schools. 

 
D. MINUTES - 

May 24, 2016 – Public Work Session 

May 24, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
June 7, 2016 – Public Work Session/Community Meeting 
June 8, 2016 – Public Work Session/Community Meeting 

 
E. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 

 Consideration of Claims 
 

 Resolution for Internal Controls 
 

 Food Service Bids –The Business office recommends Board approval of the bid 
award for food, commodities, fresh produce, supplies, fresh bakery supplies, 
frozen bakery supplies, and dairy supplies. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Extra Curricular Purchases - The Business Office seeks Board approval of extra-
curricular purchase requests. 



BOARD AGENDA June 14, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy DP – Materiality and Process for Reporting Material Items - The 
administration seeks Board approval of the proposed new Board Policy DP – 
Materiality and Process for Reporting Material Items, as initially presented at 

the Board’s May 24th regular meeting. 
 

G. NEW BUSINESS 

 
 Secondary Partnerships Report 

 

 New Course Offerings – The administration seeks Board approval of proposed 
new course offerings. 
 

 2016-2017 Board Meeting Schedule – The administration seeks Board approval 
of the proposed changes to the Board of School Trustees’ meeting schedule for 
2016-2017, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 

 
 Resolution – The administration seeks Board authorization to purchase real 

estate at 1000 McPherson Street and enter into a lease agreement subsequent 

to the purchase. 
 

 Board Policy GDBA-10– The administration presents proposed revisions to 
GDBA-10 – Employees in Miscellaneous Positions Compensation Plan, and asks 
to waive 2nd reading. 

 
 Grant Confirmation – The administration seeks Board confirmation of a grant 

submitted to the Dollar General Literacy Grants for a GrapeSEED Literacy Grant 

from Hawthorne Elementary. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 

trip requests. 
 

H. PERSONNEL 

 
 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 

the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 
 

I. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 
 From Audience 

 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 

 















MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

May 24, 2016 
 
Riverview Elementary School, 2509 Wood Street, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Brenda Kolbe 
 Shawn Hannon Dawn McGrath 
 Doug Hasler Kevin Scott 
 Rob Haworth Doug Thorne 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a presentation from Shawn Hannon and Brenda Kolbe on 
communication and media methods including use statistics on the District’s 

facebook page; and agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:25 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

May 24, 2016 
 

Riverview Elementary School, 2509 Wood Street, Elkhart – at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 

 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

  

President Glenn Duncan called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order. 
 

Call to 
Order 

The colors were presented by Boy Scout Pack 62 and Girl Scout Troop 
10410.  The scouts led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Pledge 
 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol  

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) member Daniel 

Brummet, a senior at Memorial High School (MHS) provided an update 
on spring sports heading into sectional and regional tournaments; the 
large turnout for free physicals provided by OSMC; upcoming finals; and 

graduation on June 5th.  Mr. Brummet gave a recap to the day’s Project 
Y celebration, including the award of scholarships, made possible by 
Memorial and Central high school students achieving their community 

service goals. 
 

SSAC 

Representative 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $18,820.00 from 
the MHS Athletic Booster club to the MHS athletic department; $550.00 
from the Indiana Association for the Education of Young Children for 

payment of the National Association for the Education of Young Children 
fees for the Teenage Parent Program; $1,025.00 worth of gift cards 
from School Health Corporation to be applied to a recent order; $971.59 

from Robert Weed Plywood to be used for PBIS student incentives and 
additional student needs; a 1992 International 1000 Series truck valued 
at $4,500.00 from Mike Dobrzeniecki to be used in the diesel services 

technology class at the Elkhart Area Career Center (EACC); and two 
Caterpillar C3.4 diesel engines ($1,200.00) and 232 service and parts 

manuals along with 4 turbochargers ($5,820.00) from MacAllister 
Machinery to be used in EACC’s diesel services technology classes. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

 



2 
 

Ted Foland, energy education specialist, gave a Building Energy Report 
on Riverview regarding the audit conducted on Monday, May 23rd.  The 

building was unoccupied, with a few exceptions, due to being a built in 
snow day.  Staff had a 79% shut down efficiency with blinds and doors 
closed, electronics and lights off, and all air handler units off as 

scheduled.  Current building cost avoidance is at 26.4% for 2015.  
Overall cost avoidance since September, 2009 is 26.4 valued at over 
$125,000.  Riverview is ranked first in cost/square foot usage for 

elementary buildings and third among all classroom buildings.   Building 
shut downs and preparation for summer cleaning are in process. 
 

Building Energy 
Report 

Barb Cripe, principal, Riverview Elementary School welcomed the Board.  
Mrs. Cripe spoke about the successes of the school and introduced the 
following students:  perfect IREAD scores – Mackenzie Adkins, Caden 

Comer, Marina Engle, Jillian Kruip, Reid Morton, Josh Orellana-Barrera, 
Albert Simeri and Neva Wenzel; outstanding art student – Jordan 
Bontrager; science fair winners: Chloe Dodd, Demi Brown, Kylie Bierly, 

Jessica Ramirez, Cooper Shoetzow, and Juan Juarez; and robotics team 
state competitors – Bianca Romero, Caleb Schmitt, AJ Brunson, Everett 
Schoetzow, Ronale Hardy, Jordan Sanders, Jessica Ramirez, Garrett 

Redding and Darby Gress.  Children from each grade level presented 
information they learned as a result of the water studies program.  The 

program was a result of Ms. Monique Harris’ trips to Bellevue, Haiti and 
the need for water conservation.  In closing, Mrs. Cripe thanked her 
staff, the support community and the parents for a wonderful year.  

 

Building Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
 

May 10, 2016 - Public Work Session 
May 10, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting  
May 17, 2016 - Public Work Session 

 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 
$4,837,474.95 as shown on the May 24, 2016, claims listing.  (Codified 

File 1516-131) 
 

Payment of 
Claims  

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – April 30, 

2016 and found it to be in order. 
 

Financial Report 

Doug Hasler, executive director of support services, reported the 

following fund loans were made on April 30, 2016: $271,000.00 to 
Referendum Tax Levy Fund from General Fund; and $250,000.00 to 
Transportation Operating Fund from General Fund. 

 

Fund Loans 

Mr. Hasler presented the proposed timeline for adoption for 2017. Budget 
Timeline 

 

  



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an increase in the price of 
school meals for the 2016-2017 school year; breakfast for elementary 

students will be $1.55, an increase of $.10; middle school students will 
be $1.75, an increase of $.05; and for high school students $1.80, which 
is an increase of $.10.  Lunch prices for elementary students will be 

$2.45, an increase of $.10; for middle school students $2.70, an 
increase of $.10.  Lunch prices for high schools students will increase by 

$.10 to $2.80.  Elementary and secondary staff breakfast and lunch 

fees increased by $.10.  The cost for extra milk will remain the same as 

last year - $.65.  The reduced breakfast and lunch prices will remain the 

same as last year – $.30 for breakfast and $.40 for lunch.  (Codified File 
1516-132) 
 

Meal Prices 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 
activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 

File 1516-120) 
 

Fundraiser 
Approval 

Mary Jo Sartorius, director of special education, and Tina Northern, 

special education mild intervention supervisor, presented a report on the 
pilot program at Beardsley between the Samaritan Center and Elkhart 
Community Schools.  The program was directed at children from first 

through fourth grade who suffer from emotional distress.  Traci Beatty 
met once a week with parents and encouraged continued reinforcement 
at home.  Joyce Menchinger, psychotherapist, from the Samaritan 

Center co-facilitated training through the use of games and activities.  
Dr. Kalie Steele expressed the hope of expanding the program and 
services. 

 

Department 

Report 
 

Tara White, coordinator of media services, described the upcoming 
transition from libraries to learning commons.  The changes will include 

redefining spaces, updating technology, reorganizing resources, create 
flexibility of spaces by mobile furnishings, adding color, the addition of 
technology spaces, and reuse/refurbishing of existing furnishings.  The 

first two libraries to transition will be at Daly and Beck elementary 
schools.  Each of the elementary schools will be receiving $10,000 
toward to renovations from the Elkhart Education Foundation. 

 

Department 
Report 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the recommendation to 
reappoint Clarence Thomas to a four-year term through June, 2020 on 

the Elkhart Library Board of Trustees. 

Library 
Appointment 

The Board was presented with proposed new Board Policy DP – 
Materiality and Process for Reporting Material Items, for initial 
consideration. 

 

Board Policy DP 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submission of a grant to 
Scholastic Reading Club for a 2016 Patterson Partnership grant from 

Pierre Moran Middle School for $4,647.00. (Codified File 1516-134) 
 

Grant Approval 



4 
 

By unanimous action, the Board confirmed the submission of a grant to 
the Indiana Department of Homeland Security for a Secured School 

safety Grant FY 2017 from ECS for $50,000.  (Codified File 1516-134) 
 

Grant 
Confirmation 

By unanimous action, the Board approved an overnight trip request for 
Elkhart Area Career Center students to travel to Louisville, KY on June 
20 thru 25 to compete at the SkillsUSA national contest. 

Overnight Trip 
Request 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the May 24, 2016 listing and addendum. (Codified File 

1516-135) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 

Report 

Approved four (4) consent agreements regarding retirement and 
severance benefits for certified staff members (Codified Files 

1516-136 and 137) 
 

Consent 
Agreements 

Employment of the following eight (8) certified staff members for 

the 2016-2017 school year:  
Anna Calkins - TBD/elementary 
Whitney Grandison - TBD/elementary 

Charles Luke  TBD/elementary 
Kaylee Miller - TBD/elementary 

Cortney Quick - TBD/elementary 
Scott Rutledge - Central/AF ROTC 
Tara Schuster - TBD/elementary 

Shayla Yoder - TBD/elementary 
 

Certified 

Employment 
 

Retirement of the following two (2) certified staff members at the 

end of the 2015-16 school year, with years of service in 
parenthesis: 

Daniel Rice, Sr. - Director of Technology (27) 

Garvin Roberson - social studies at West Side (30) 
 

Certified 

Retirement 
 

Resignation of the following five (5) certified staff members 
effective on dates indicated: 

Jessica Caskey - grade 5 at Beck, 6/1/16 

John DeShone - mathematics at Central, 7/1/16 
Kelly Hunnings - ENL at Riverview, 6/1/16 
Morgan Minisee-Lowe - grade 2 at Roosevelt, 6/1/16 

Leslie Szilagyi - science at Central, 6/1/16 
 

Certified 
Resignation 
 

Personal leave for certified staff member Maribeth Harrell, ENL at 

Central, beginning 8/2/16 and ending 12/16/16. 
 

Personal  

Leave 

  



5 
 

Regular employment of the following seven (7) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated: 
Marcelle Dunning-  paraprofessional at Eastwood, 4/23/16 
Henry Griffin Jr. - food service at North Side, 5/24/16 

Sylvia Miller - food service at Beck, 5/11/16 
Garrett Paulson - custodian at Building Services, 5/17/16 
Tamara Robison - paraprofessional at Beck, 5/23/16 

Danielle Schroeder - paraprofessional at Cleveland, 5/16/16 
Lisa Tyson - food service at Woodland/Memorial, 5/11/16 
 

Classified  
Employment 

Retirement of the following three (3) classified employees on dates 
indicated, with years of service in parenthesis: 

Debra Black - secretary at Eastwood, 6/9/16 (23) 

Janet Burdick - food service at West Side, 6/2/16 (15) 
Karla Copenhaver - secretary at ESC, 5/27/16 (24) 
 

Classified 
Retirement 

Resignation of the following four (4) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated:  

Valorie Books - bus driver at Transportation, 5/19/16 

Anna Calkins - paraprofessional at Hawthorne, 6/1/16 
Kyseidra Jackson - food service at Beardsley, 5/3/16 

Megan Hovater - paraprofessional at Cleveland, 6/1/16 
 

Classified 
Resignations 
 

Medical leave for classified employee Laterica Hubbard, food 

service at Beck, beginning 5/12/16 and ending 6/1/16. 
 

Medical Leave 

Termination of classified employee Nicole House, food service at 

West Side in accordance Board Policy GDPD 1. a, c, g. 
 

Classified 

Termination 
 

Superintendent Haworth thanked everyone who made Project Y such a 

success 
 

From the 

Superintendent 
 

An audience member spoke regarding the proposed combined high 

school plan. 

From the 

Audience 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:35 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

  



6 
 

APPROVED: 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 

 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION/COMMUNITY MEETING 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

June 7, 2016 
 
Bristol Elementary School, 705 Indiana Avenue, Bristol, IN – 6:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Jeri E. Stahr 
 Karen S. Carter Douglas K. Weaver 
   
   
Absent:  Carolyn R. Morris 
   

 

Roll Call 

Superintendent Rob Haworth conducted a community information and feedback 
session to get public input on the district's strategic planning efforts. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:30 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION/COMMUNITY MEETING 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

June 8, 2016 
 
Monger Elementary School, 1100 E. Hively Avenue, Elkhart, IN – 6:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Jeri E. Stahr 
 Karen S. Carter Douglas K. Weaver 
   
   
Absent:  Carolyn R. Morris 
   

 

Roll Call 

Superintendent Rob Haworth conducted a community information and feedback 
session to get public input on the district's strategic planning efforts. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:00 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 















June 8, 2016 

At the June 14, 2016 Board meeting I will recommend Board approval of the following bids. 

 

a) Food Service Department received 4 food bids from Gordon Food Service, Stanz Food Service, 

Commercial Foods and 7-Up Snapple Group.  The lowest, most responsive and responsible 

bidders are: 

  Gordon Food Service   $  692,939.60 

  Stanz Food Service   $  563,976.76 

  Commercial Foods   $    44,177.19 

             Total       $1,301,093.55 

 

b) Food Service Department received 2 commodities bids from Gordon Food Service and Stanz 

Food Service.  The lowest most responsive and responsible bidders are: 

 

  Gordon Food Service   $   256,202.39 

  Stanz Food Service   $   326,291.80 

    Total  $   582,494.14 

 

c) Food Service Department received 3 Fresh produce bids from Gordon Food Service, Piazza 

Produce and Stanz Food Service.  The lowest responsive and responsible bidders are: 

 

  Gordon Food Service  $ 134,702.36 

  Piazza Produce   $ 175,652.68 

    Total      $ 310,355.04 

 

d) Food Service Department received 6 supply bids from Gordon Food Service, Stanz Food Service, 

Wallace Packaging, Daxwell, Commercial Foods and Central Poly Corp.  The lowest most 

responsive and responsible bidders are: 

 

  Gordon Food Service     $ 103,294.77 

  Stanz Food Service     $ 117,468.74 

  Wallace Packing               $   27,637.50 

  Daxwell     $     6,972.20 

  Central Poly Corp.   $        304.00 

  Commercial Foods   $     4,397.50 

    Total   $ 260,074.71 

 

e) Food Service Department received 5 bakery bids from Alpha Bakers, Aunt Millie’s, Gordon Food 

Service, Stanz Food Service and CEM.  The lowest most responsive and responsible bidders are: 

 

  Alpha Bakers   $ 26,519.14 

  Aunt Millie’s    $   2,331.02 

       Total  $ 28,850.16 (fresh) 

 

  Gordon Food Service  $ 18,543.05 

  Stanz Food Service  $ 72,950.93 

    Total  $ 91,493.98 (frozen) 

 

 



f) Food Service Department received 3 dairy bids from Prairie Farms Dairy, Dean Foods and 

Gordon Food Service.  The lowest most responsive and responsible bidders are. 

 

  Prairie Farms   $ 666,286.49  Escalating / De Escalating 

  Gordon Food Service  $        664.50 

    Total  $ 666,950.99 Escalating / De Escalating 

 

  Grand Total of all Bids $ 3,241,312.62 

 

 

 

 

A summary of the bids received in all of the bid categories, vender overview, costing breakdown, 

commodity and bid comparison is attached for your reference.  If you would like to review the detailed 

bids for any (or all) bid categories prior to next Tuesday’s board meeting, these documents are available 

in my office.  Please contact me at 262-5523 if you would like to make arrangements to review this 

information, or if you have any questions concerning the bids. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Pam Melcher 



Companies that received bid 

packets 2016-2017
Submitted Bid Declined to Bid No Response

Gordon Food Service X

Stanz Foodservice X

Fox River Food Service X

US Food Service X

Commercial Foods X

7-Up/Snapple Group X

National Food Group X

Interflex X

Sysco X

Troyer's Food X

4 2 4

Companies that received bid 

packets 2016-2017
Submitted Bid Declined to Bid No Response

Gordon Food Service X

Stanz Foodservice X

Fox River Food Service X

US Food Service X

Acosta X

Sysco X

Troyer's Food X

2 1 4

Companies that received bid 

packets 2016-2017
Submitted Bid Declined to Bid No Response

Gordon Food Service X

Stanz Foodservice X

Fox River Food Service X

US Food Service X

Piazza Produce X

Sysco X

Caito Foods X

Troyer's Food X

Shelton Farms X

4 1 4

Companies that received bid 

packets 2016-2017
Submitted Bid Declined to Bid No Response

Gordon Food Service X

Stanz Foodservice X

Fox River Food Service X

US Food Service X

SUPPLY

FOOD BID

COMMODITY 

PRODUCE



Berk Paper & Suppy X

Par-Pak X

Webco Packaging X

Wallace Packaging, LLC X

All Amercian Poly Corp X

Troyer's Food X

Daxwell X

Sysco X

Acosta X

Serv-Pak Products X

Interflex X

Ecolab X

Cental Poly Corp. X

Commercial Foods X

6 2 10

Companies that received bid 

packets 2016-2017
Submitted Bid Declined to Bid No Response

Alpha/Kreamo Bakery X

Aunt Millies X

Gordon Food Service X

Stanz Foodservice X

Fox River Food Service X

CEM X

Sysco X

Interflex X

US Food Service X

Troyer's Food X

5 2 3

Companies that received bid 

packets 2016-2017
Submitted Bid Declined to Bid No Response

Dean Foods X

Prairie Farms Dairy X

Scholl Dairy X

Troyer's Food X

Interflex X

Gordon Food Service X

3 1 2

BAKERY BID

DAIRY BID



    Elkhart Community Schools
      Food Service Department

                                       2016-2017 BIDS
Bid Period from August 1, 2016 through July 28, 2017

Comm. Piazza Central Wallace Aunt Alpha Prairie

Category Gordon's Stanz Foods Produce Poly Corp Packaging Daxwell Millie's Kreamo Farms

Food $1,301,093.55 Total

Beverage/Ala-Carte $69,654.10 $114,317.79 $6,090.05 $692,939.60 GFS

Breakfast/Frozen Entrée $110,928.60 $30,493.70 $563,976.76 Stanz

Breakfast/Frozen Meat $4,476.75 $44,177.19 Comm Foods

Breakfast/Grain-Cereal $101,495.98 $42.56

Condiment/Condiment $14,093.89 $3,802.31 $146.60

Condiment/Salad Dressing $14,422.06 $36,437.70

Condiment/Spice/Flavoring $1,844.88 $507.29

Bread/Cookie/Pretzel $4,016.94

Bread/Cookies-Cookies $11,529.20 $29,916.00

Fruit/Bowls $154,663.37

Fruit/Bagged $7,621.78 $15,763.00

Fruit/Canned $48,229.00

Sherbet/Slushies/Juice $132.86 $40,095.00

Smart Snack/Frozen $4,619.20 $2,646.70

Meats/Entrée-Beef $3,635.00

Meats/Entrée-Entrée $91,976.57 $752.40

Meats/Entrée-Asian $133.17

Meats/Entrée-Pork $4,773.90 $6,408.00

Meats/Entrée-Poultry $4,966.19 $7,730.13

Misc./Gelatins & Pudding $1,338.36

Misc./Misc. $8,332.92 $2,788.50

Misc./Soup-Base-Gravy $213.56 $1,527.50

Misc Snack/Misc. Snack $103,057.48 $4,386.84 $37,573.04

Misc/Frozen $17,765.00

Refrigerator/Cheese $10,967.73 $415.40

Refrigerator/Meat $4,975.30 $2,013.00

Refrigerator/Egg $693.30

Refrigerator/Other Dairy $30,074.80 $13,293.35

Refrigerator/Pasta $17,165.35 $14,538.00

Staples/Grains $33,588.65 $2,598.77

Staples/Staples $3,756.96 $1,349.05 $367.50

Staples/Shortening & Oils $156.46 $476.75

Vegetable/Can $21,761.46 $4,355.75

Vegetable/Frozen $7,229.50 $5,970.60



Comm. Piazza Central Wallace Aunt Alpha Prairie

Category Gordon's Stanz Foods Produce Poly Corp Packaging Daxwell Millie's Kreamo Farms

Commodity $582,494.19 Total

Advance/Troyers $12,312.00 $256,202.39 GFS

Best Express/Troyers $11,901.00 $326,291.80 Stanz

Bosco/Troyers $23,244.50

Brookwood Farms/Stanz $25,600.00

Conagra/GFS $28,451.20

GoldKist/Troyers $38,394.50

High Liner/Stanz $3,024.50

Jennie O'/GFS $15,647.00

Lamb Weston/GFS $19,495.25

Land O' Lakes/Troyers $24,949.85

Lings/Troyers $41,114.75

McCain/Troyers $9,249.00

Michael/GFS $1,863.85

Nardone Bros/Troyers

Red Gold/Troyers $23,279.40

Rich's/GFS $2,287.50

S&F/Stanz $39,338.00

Schwan's/Troyers $46,297.50

Simplot/Troyers $623.50

Sunny Fresh/Troyers $12,824.90

Tasty Brands/Troyers $129,815.15

Tyson/Troyers $72,780.84

Fresh Produce $310,355.04 Total

Vegetable/Fresh $95,366.99 $74,920.83 $134,702.36 GFS

Vegetable/Prepared Item $140.54 $175,652.68 Piazza

Fruit/Fresh $39,194.83 $100,731.85

Supplies $260,074.71 Total

$103,294.77 $117,468.74 $4,397.50 $304.00 $27,637.50 $6,972.20

Bakery $28,850.16 Fresh/T

$18,543.05 $72,950.93 $2,331.02 $26,519.14 $91,493.98 Frozen/T

Dairy $666,950.99 Total

Dairy  (Esc/De-Esc) $664.50 $666,286.49

TOTAL $1,206,346.67 $1,080,688.23 $48,574.69 $175,652.68 $304.00 $27,637.50 $6,972.20 $2,331.02 $26,519.14 $666,286.49

GRAND TOTAL $3,241,312.62



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date: June 14, 2016 
 
To: Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent  

Board of School Trustees 
 
From: Pam Melcher 
 Food Service Director 
 
RE: Recommendation of Food Bid 
 

 
On Tuesday, April 19th at 10:00 a.m., E.D.T., Mrs. Pamela Melcher and Dr. Robert 
Woods publicly opened and read aloud the bids for Food/Cleaning Supplies.   
 
See attached tabulation: 
 
The Food Service Department is recommending Board approval awarding Food Bid 
from August 1, 2016 through July 28, 2017 to the following company: 
 

 
    
   Gordon Food Service $ 692,939.60 
 
   Stanz Foodservice  $ 563,976.76 
 
   Commercial Foods  $   44,177.19 
     
   

 
Total    $1,301,093.55     
 

 

 
       Revised June 8, 2016 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date: June 14, 2016 
 
To: Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent  

Board of School Trustees 
 
From: Pam Melcher 
 Food Service Director 
 
RE: Recommendation of Commodity Bid 

 
 
On Tuesday, April 19th at 10:00 a.m., E.D.T., Mrs. Pamela Melcher and Dr. Robert 
Woods publicly opened and read aloud the bids for Commodities.   
 
See attached tabulation: 
 
The Food Service Department is recommending Board approval awarding Commodity 
Bid from August 1, 2016 through July 28, 2017 to the following company: 
 

 
    
   Gordon Food Service $ 256,202.39 
 
   Stanz Foodservice  $ 326,291.80 
    
    

 
Total    $  582,494.14            
 

 

 
       Revised June 8, 2016 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date: June 14, 2016 
 
To: Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent  

Board of School Trustees 
 
From: Pam Melcher 
 Food Service Director 
 
RE: Recommendation of Fresh Produce Bid 

 
 
On Tuesday, April 19th at 10:00 a.m., E.D.T., Mrs. Pamela Melcher and Dr. Robert 
Woods publicly opened and read aloud the bids for Fresh Produce.   
 
See attached tabulation: 
 
The Food Service Department is recommending Board approval awarding Fresh 
Produce Bid from August 1, 2016 through July 28, 2017 to the following company: 
 

 
    
   Gordon Food Service $ 134,702.36 
 
   Piazza Produce  $ 175,652.68 
  

 
Total    $ 310,355.04            
 

 

 
       Revised June 8, 2016 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date: June 14, 2016 
 
To: Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent  

Board of School Trustees 
 
From: Pam Melcher 
 Food Service Director 
 
RE: Recommendation of Supply Bid 

 
 
On Tuesday, April 19th at 10:00 a.m., E.D.T., Mrs. Pamela Melcher and Dr. Robert 
Woods publicly opened and read aloud the bids for Supplies.   
 
See attached tabulation: 
 
The Food Service Department is recommending Board approval awarding Supply Bid 
from August 1, 2016 through July 28, 2017 to the following company: 
 

 
    
   Gordon Food Service $ 103,294.77 
 
   Stanz Foodservice  $ 117,468.74 
 
   Wallace Packaging  $   27,637.50  
 
   Daxwell   $     6,972.20 
 
   Central Poly Corp.  $        304.00  
 
   Commercial Foods  $     4,397.50 
    

 
Total    $ 260,074.71 
 
       Revised June 8, 2014 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date: June 14, 2016 
 
To: Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent  

Board of School Trustees 
 
From: Pam Melcher 
 Food Service Director 
 
RE: Recommendation of Bakery Bid (FRESH) 

 
 
On Tuesday, April 19th at 10:00 a.m., E.D.T., Mrs. Pamela Melcher and Dr. Robert 
Woods publicly opened and read aloud the bids for Bakery Supplies.   
 
See attached tabulation: 
 
The Food Service Department is recommending Board approval awarding Bakery Bid 
from August 1, 2016 through July 28, 2017 to the following company: 
 

 
Alpha, Kreamo Bakers  $26,519.14 

 

Aunt Millie’s Bakeries:  $  2,331.02 
 

 
Totals     $28,850.16 
            

 
 
 
 
 
      Revised June 8, 2016 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date: June 14, 2016 
 
To: Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent  

Board of School Trustees 
 
From: Pam Melcher 
 Food Service Director 
 
RE: Recommendation of Bakery Bid (FROZEN) 

 
 
On Tuesday, April 19th at 10:00 a.m., E.D.T., Mrs. Pamela Melcher and Dr. Robert 
Woods publicly opened and read aloud the bids for Bakery Supplies.   
 
See attached tabulation: 
 
The Food Service Department is recommending Board approval awarding Bakery Bid 
from August 1, 2016 through July 28, 2017 to the following company: 
 

 
Gordon Food Service  $ 18,543.05 

 

 Stanz Food Service   $ 72,950.93 
   
    

 
Totals     $  91,493.98 
            

 
 
 
 
      Revised June 8, 2016 



 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date: June 14, 2016 
 
To: Dr. Robert Haworth, Superintendent  

Board of School Trustees 
 
From: Pam Melcher 
 Food Service Director 
 
RE: Recommendation of Dairy Bid 

 
 
On Tuesday, April 19th at 10:00 a.m., E.D.T., Mrs. Pamela Melcher and Dr. Robert 
Woods publicly opened and read aloud the bids for Dairy Supplies.   
 
See attached tabulation: 
 
The Food Service Department is recommending Board approval awarding Dairy Bid 
from August 1, 2016 through July 28, 2017 to the following company: 
 

 
Prairie Farms  $ 666,286.49 
 
Gordon Food Service $        664.50  

       
   

 
Total    $ 666,950.99 (Esc/De-Esc)    
 

 

 

 

 
       Revised June 8, 2016 



Elkhart Community Schools

Food Service

Bid Comparison

Food

2012-2013 GFS $703,012.23 Increase: $113,166.54

2013-2014 GFS $645,337.79 Savings: $57,674.44

2014-2015 GFS $873,233.70 Increase: $227,895.91

2015-2016 GFS $399,123.74 Savings: $474,109.96

2016-2017 GFS $692,939.60 Increase: $293,815.86

2012-2013 Stanz $311,601.64 Savings: $25,050.72

2013-2014 Stanz $419,448.91 Increase: $107,847.27

2014-2015 Stanz $672,107.41 Increase: $252,658.50

2015-2016 Stanz $245,433.14 Savings: $426,674.27

2016-2017 Stanz $563,976.76 Increase: $318,543.62

2013-2014 Commercial Foods $27,327.85

2014-2015 Commercial Foods $316,962.77 Increase: $289,634.92

2015-2016 Commercial Foods $28,804.94 Savings: $288,157.83

2016-2017 Commercial Foods $44,177.19 Increase: $15,372.25

2014-2015 7-UP/Snapple $7,282.50

2015-2016 7-UP/Snapple $4,452.00 Savings: $2,830.50

2015-2016 Troyer's Food $903,851.92 Increase $903,851.92

Commodity

2012-2013 GFS $41,329.58 Savings: $215,954.05

2013-2014 GFS $45,378.14 Increase: $4,048.56

2014-2015 GFS $172,211.80 Increase: $126,833.66

2015-2016 GFS $82,348.25 Savings: $89,863.55

2016-2017 GFS $256,202.39 Increase: $173,854.14

2012-2013 Stanz $464,024.65 Increase: $265,379.36

2013-2014 Stanz $526,159.10 Increase: $62,134.45

2014-2015 Stanz $506,086.90 Savings:  $20,072.20

2015-2016 Stanz $56,415.00 Savings:  $449,671.90

2016-2017 Stanz $326,291.80 Increase: $269,876.80

2013-2014 Commercial Foods $10,715.00

2014-2015 Commercial Foods $0.00

2015-2016 Troyer's Food $1,008,110.87 Increase: $1,008,110.87

Produce

2012-2013 GFS $56,248.62 Savings: $19,554.94

2013-2014 GFS $115,175.34 Increase: $58,926.72

2014-2015 GFS $141,474.23 Increase: $26,298.89

2015-2016 GFS $54,987.36 Savings: $86,486.87

2016-2017 GFS $134,702.36 Increase: $79,715.00



2012-2013 Stanz $15,499.50 Increase: $7,117.50

2012-2013 Piazza Produce $226,649.24 Increase: $83,591.19

2013-2014 Piazza Produce $286,125.50 Increase: $59,476.26

2014-2015 Piazza Produce $275,433.00 Savings: $10,692.50

2015-2016 Piazza Produce $120,223.50 Savings: $155,209.50

2016-2017 Piazza Produce $175,652.68 Increase: $55,429.18

2015-2016 Troyer's Farm $68,825.75 Increase: $68,825.75

2015-2016 Shelton's Farm $129,270.90 Increase: $129,270.90

Supplies

2012-2013 GFS $21,142.21 Increase: $3,162.52

2013-2014 GFS $34,286.38 Increase: $13,144.17

2014-2015 GFS $153,096.42 Increase: $118,810.04

2015-2016 GFS $60,234.08 Savings: $92,862.34

2016-2017 GFS $103,294.77 Increase: $43,060.69

2012-2013 Stanz $30,798.49 Increase: $2,858.74

2013-2014 Stanz $63,994.82 Increase: $33,196.33

2014-2015 Stanz $87,162.31 Increase: $23,167.49

2015-2016 Stanz $209,118.86 Increase: $121,956.55

2016-2017 Stanz $117,468.74 Savings: $91,650.12

2012-2013 Wallace Packaging $38,508.52 Savings: $25,845.28

2013-2014 Wallace Packaging $4,023.00 Savings: $34,485.52

2014-2015 Wallace Packaging $17,574.70 Increase: $13,551.70

2015-2016 Wallace Packaging $478.10 Savings: $17,096.60

2016-2017 Wallace Packaging $27,637.50 Increase: $27,159.40

2012-2013 Webco $520.35

2012-2013 Par-Pak $60,961.40 Savings: $12,312.39

2013-2014 Par-Pak $103,871.36 Increase: $42,909.96

2013-2014 Daxwell $53,074.80

2014-2015 Daxwell NO BID

2015-2016 Daxwell $52,037.50 Increase: $52,037.50

2016-2017 Daxwell $6,972.20 Savings: $45,065.30

2013-2014 Central Poly $880.25

2016-2017 Central Poly $304.00

2015-2016 Troyer's Food $3,355.20 Increase: $3,355.20

2016-2017 Commercial Foods $4,397.50



Bakery

2013-2014 Kreamo $21,364.11 Increase:

2014-2015 Alpha/Kreamo $44,713.00 Increase: $23,348.89

2015-2016  Fresh Alpha/Kreamo $1,227.50 Savings: $43,485.50

2016-2017 Fresh Alpha/Kreamo $26,519.14 Increase: $25,291.64

2012-2013 Aunt Millie's $69,656.58

2013-2014 Aunt Millie's $2,082.80 Savings: $67,573.78

2014-2015 Aunt Millie's $5,731.97 Increase: $3,649.17

2015-2016  Fresh Aunt Millie's $36,606.28 Increase: $30,874.31

2016-2017 Fresh Aunt Millie's $2,331.02 Savings: $34,275.26

2012-2013 CEM $3,380.15

2015-2016  Frozen CEM $161,920.00 Increase: $161,920.00

2013-2014 GFS $1,329.12

2015-2016  Frozen GFS $10,759.59 Increase: $10,759.59

2016-2017 Frozen GFS $18,543.05 Increase: $7,783.46

2015-2016  Frozen Stanz $6,316.90 Increase: $6,316.90

2016-2017 Frozen Stanz $72,950.93 Increase: $66,634.03

Dairy

2012-2013 Prairie Farms $379,898.94 Savings:  $78,459.28

2013-2014 Prairie Farms $741,849.02 Increase: $361,950.08

2014-2015 Prairie Farms $742,731.18 Increase: $882.16

2015-2016 Prairie Farms $697,104.90 Savings:  $45,626.28

2016-2017 Prairie Farms $666,286.49 Savings:  $30,818.41

2016-2017 GFS $664.50

Totals:

2012-2013 $2,526,347.42 Increase: $117,686.40

2013-2014 $3,243,169.89 Increase: $716,822.47

2014-2015 $4,015,801.89 Increase: $772,632.00

2015-2016 $4,341,006.28 Increase: $325,204.39

2016-2017 $3,241,312.62 Savings: $1,099,693.66



                 Commodity Comparison

Company Year Pounds Money Saved

K12 Foodservice

2011-2012 187,621.67                       $235,239.44

2012-2013 161,362.10                       $217,032.50

2013-2014 142,837.92                       $191,758.92

2014-2015 109,161.91                       $155,697.33

2015-2016 85,879.76                         $173,339.19

Processor Link

2011-2012 115,466.38                       $58,785.27

2012-2013 177,808.11                       $110,895.83

2013-2014 190,869.02                       $128,738.94

2014-2015 177,900.84                       $116,911.02

2015-2016 168,209.99                       $168,022.08

USDA/Brown Box

Total Entitlement Entitlement Used Remaining Balance

Including bonus buys

2011-2012 $402,307.85 $404,929.73 ($2,621.88)

Including bonus buys

2012-2013 $434,833.65 $447,566.55 ($12,732.90)

2013-2014 $426,789.18 $424,173.88 $2,615.30

2014-2015 $431,630.82 $441,261.13 ($8,630.31)

2015-2016 $428,159.05 $434,758.97 ($65,599.22)

Revised 6/8/2016



PRODUCT PRICE COMPARISON

Product 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017

Bean & Beef Burrito $44.77 $51.93 $48.66 $49.57 $50.16

Hot Dog $18.21 $19.17 $12.21 $28.35 $26.84

Breadstick $21.01 $18.42 $21.36 NB NB

Chicken Nugget $37.50 $38.05 $36.34 $40.55 $38.98

Spaghetti Noodles $25.16 $25.29 $25.34 $25.34 $25.34

Pork Tenderloin $21.66 $23.08 $17.80 $17.80 $17.80

Pizza Bites $38.11 $38.40 $38.20 $41.66 $42.92

Chicken Tenders $37.50 $38.05 $38.30 $40.55 $41.40

Chicken Sandwich $37.50 $35.35 $38.30 $40.55 $41.40

Galaxy Pizza $36.39 $36.31 $33.66 $33.03 $33.85

Spicy Chicken Sandwich $36.90 $39.25 $39.50 $44.45 $45.30

Bosco Sticks $29.69 $30.43 $32.49 $25.92 $28.10

Corn Dog $23.98 $23.24 $27.31 $27.31 $27.31

Big Daddy Cheese Pizza $54.60 $48.34 $47.08 $46.61 $48.23

Popcorn Chicken $34.20 $29.55 $29.80 $30.95 $31.60

BBQ Pork NB $31.00* $31.50* $31.50 $32.00

Garlic Bread $20.48 $20.37 $20.27 $20.27 $19.85

Mozzarella Sticks $34.35 $34.35 $32.66* $29.32 $30.50

Pot Roast $33.44 $35.27 $38.52 $43.83 $36.35

Crispito $26.46 $23.28 $27.78 $23.74 $26.01

Baked Chicken $45.20 $46.20 $30.24 $54.55 $47.35

4 oz apple juice $12.20 $10.95 $11.64 $11.24 $12.95

4 oz orange juice $13.67 $13.55 $14.29 $13.09 $16.03

4 oz grape juice $14.30 $17.64 $14.23 $12.64 $15.29

4 oz fruit punch $13.39 $12.51 $12.75 $12.57 $14.55

6 oz apple juice $9.59 $11.70 $12.68 $12.32 $11.70

6 oz grape juice $10.43 $18.12 $15.61 $13.93 $14.34

6 oz orange juice $9.96 $14.18 $15.29 $14.05 $14.76

Yogurt bulk $20.12 $19.05 $18.31 $21.45 $21.45

Trix yogurt $12.71 $12.27 $13.11 $12.10 $12.10

Applesauce cup $17.58 $16.30 $15.05 $20.05 $15.62

Egg & Bacon Pizza $44.03 $45.14 $44.75 $47.41 $47.44

Pancake $12.77 $13.09 $15.98 $15.98 $16.18

Sausage links $38.54 $36.76 $36.88 $36.88 $36.03

Breakfast bagel $37.41 $38.72 $33.11 NB NB

Blueberry Pancakes $29.74 $28.64 $29.07 $28.08 $28.71

French Toast $54.64 $54.36 $35.82 $38.31 $40.71

String Cheese $15.36 $18.90 $14.55 $14.92 $14.88

Scrambled Eggs $31.05 $27.51 $19.98 $19.38 $18.91

Sliced Tomatoes $10.50 $10.50 $10.50 $10.45 $18.00

Whole Tomatoes $13.83 $13.50 $26.48 $20.95 $19.95

Green Pepper $17.58 $12.25 $26.04 $16.63 $21.13

Celery Stix $18.11 $17.50 $19.38 $8.00 $7.95

Snack carrots $18.26 NB $18.65 $18.01 $18.34

Carrot Stix $18.32 $17.62 $17.27 NB $20.50

Shredded lettuce $15.95 $15.88 $15.95 $15.40 $15.40

Romaine ribbons $16.90 $16.84 $17.33 $16.95 $17.87

Romaine cut $16.99 $16.90 $24.28 $18.95 $23.96

Broccoli bite $16.02 $26.95 $26.95 $39.00 $36.00

Broccoli & cauliflower $15.17 $15.23 $15.65 $15.45 $16.24



PRODUCT PRICE COMPARISON

Cole slaw $25.87 $21.84 $19.10 $16.47 $17.32

Cantalope/honeydew $30.87 $33.28 $33.33 $34.18 $36.60

Banana petite $21.00 $21.23 $21.00 $19.95 $20.66

Lunch bunch grapes $28.22 $34.70 $32.60 $30.21 $15.74

Strawberries $16.95 $11.28 $15.20 $13.08 $15.85

Orange Section $33.33 $37.85 $40.85 $34.00 $63.00

Pineapple Chunks $33.19 $36.54 $37.24 $37.24 $42.51

Total $1,421.66 $1,423.61 $1,394.06 $1,405.17 $1,469.96



School/Organization Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose

Date(s) of 

Activity Sponsor(s)

Pinewood Sixth Grade Sixth grade students will be selling "Peelers" that 

include coupons for local businesses.  Proceeds will 

be used to offset the cost of the annual sixth grade 

camping trip.

8/15/2016 - 

8/29/2016

Ryan Smaka

West Side Girls BB Team A Nelson's barbecue will be held at Memorial High 

School.  Proceeds will be used to purchase 

equipment, uniforms and to build a fund for future 

purchases.

9/27/2016 Krista 

Hennings

Elkhart Central Girl's 

Volleyball Team

Girls will be having a Serve-A-Thon where they serve 

the ball for pledges.  Proceeds will be used for team 

camp, team gear, and senior night.

6/22/2016 - 

6/29/2016

Yolanda Stahl

Memorial Football Team members will sell merchant cards.  Proceeds 

will be used to purchase football equipment, 

uniforms, and team sweats.

8/1/2016 - 

8/20/2016

Scot Shaw

Elkhart Community Schools
Proposed School Fundraising Activities

June 14, 2016 Meeting of Board of School Trustees



ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 

Elkhart, Indiana 

 

 

 

June 9, 2016 

 

TO:  Dr. Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

 

FROM: Doug Hasler 

 

SUBJECT: Extra-Curricular Purchase 

 

 

     The Business Office recommends Board approval of purchase of the following 

items from extra-curricular funds: 

 

SCHOOL/ACCOUNT   ITEM    AMOUNT 

 

Central Extracurricular  Dresses and Glitter   $1,400.63 

 Choir Fund   bar pins 

 

                







DP 
Proposed New Board Policy 

(as presented during the 5/24/16 BST meeting) 
 

 
Materiality and Process for Reporting Material Items  

The Board of School Trustees of the Elkhart Community School Corporation recognizes losses, 
shortages, and theft of school corporation funds and other assets may occur from time to time. 
State law requires the school corporation to report to the Indiana State Board of Accounts all 
erroneous or irregular material losses, shortages or theft of school corporation funds or property; 
and 
 
Elkhart Community Schools does not condone any erroneous or irregular variances, losses, 
shortages, or thefts of political subdivision funds or property but recognizes relatively small 
items may not justify the cost of the involvement of the State Board of Accounts:  
 
Now, therefore, the Elkhart Community Schools’ Board directs as follows: 
 

1. All erroneous or irregular variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of School Corporation 
funds or property shall be reported to the Superintendent or his/her designee promptly 
and investigated by the administration.  All documents resulting from the investigation 
shall be maintained by the Business Office. 
 

2. It will be the policy of Elkhart Community Schools to report to the State Board of 
Accounts any erroneous or irregular variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of cash in 
excess of $5,000 as a single occurrence or multiple occurrences, except for inadvertent 
clerical errors which are identified timely and promptly corrected with no loss to the 
School Corporation. 
 

3. It will be the policy of Elkhart Community Schools to report to the State Board of 
Accounts any erroneous, or irregular variances, losses, shortages, or thefts of non-cash 
items in excess of $5,000 as a single occurrence or multiple occurrences, except for those 
resulting from inadvertent clerical errors or misplacements which are identified timely 
and promptly corrected with no loss to the School Corporation. 
 

4. Elkhart Community Schools reserves the right to report any and all occurrences of 
irregular variances, loses, shortages, or thefts of School Corporation cash or non-cash 
items to the State Board of Accounts and other authorities regardless of the amount. 
 

5. All School Corporation elected officials and all School Corporation employees are 
directed to comply with this policy. 

 
 
 

June 14, 2016 
 

























































LEASE AGREEMENT 

Date: _____________________, 2016 

The undersigned, Elkhart Community School Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Lessor”), 

hereby agrees to lease to Richard L. Lint (hereinafter referred to as the “Tenant”) the real estate 

commonly known as 1000 McPherson Street, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, more particularly described on 

Exhibit “A” [all buildings, improvements, and land on the real estate described on Exhibit “A”] 

attached hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter referred to as the “Property”), upon the following 

terms and conditions:  

1. Rent. One Dollar ($1.00), paid on date of Lease signature.  

2. Property Included in Lease. As follows: The land, buildings, and all fixtures and 

improvements located on the Property at the time of occupancy by Tenant on or after the 

closing of the sale of the Property by Tenant to Lessor.  

3. Possession Date, Insurance After Occupancy. During any period of time after the 

Tenant occupies any buildings or any portion or allow any of his personal property to 

remain on the Property, he will maintain insurance for any property of his in the 

building(s). Occupancy is to begin on _____________ ___, 2016, the closing date for the 

sale of the Property to Lessor.  

4. Inspection. Tenant is waiving all inspections of the Property and said Property is being 

leased “AS IS, WHERE IS.” No further inspection required.  

5. Further Conditions. This Lease is contingent upon the following conditions:  



(a) After Closing, Tenant, so long as he shall reside on the Property, will maintain the 

Property, which includes any major repairs or replacements necessary to keep the 

home located on the Property in living condition, such as repairing or replacing roof, 

furnace, air conditioning, and/or structural issues. Tenant will be responsible for 

giving notice to Lessor of the anticipated need for repair or replacement at such time 

as Tenant becomes aware of said need, and Tenant shall, after sending said notice, 

have two (2) weeks to enter into a contract with an independent contractor to provide 

said repair or replacement, to be scheduled at the earliest date available to said 

independent contractor. A contract shall be between the independent contractor and 

Tenant, and upon completion of the work, Tenant shall be responsible for payment to 

said independent contractor. The contractor performing the work must agree to a “no 

lien” contract, and must have adequate liability insurance, and shall name Lessor and 

Tenant as additional insureds.  

(b) Lessor shall maintain the sidewalks on McPherson in front of the residence located on 

the Property, including the public sidewalk, and shall be responsible for snow removal 

thereon, provided snow removal obligation shall only be on weekdays, not holidays or 

weekends. Snow removal shall be performed by Lessor’s maintenance employees 

and/or contract snow removal service.  

(c) Tenant shall maintain the yard. Tenant will himself mow or will hire a lawn service 

company to mow the lawn as needed.  

(d) Lessor’s insurance requirements for coverage on the improvements located on the 

Property shall be with an insurance carrier of Lessor’s choice, and all proceeds from 

any loss shall be payable to Lessor alone for any damage or loss of any improvement. 



Lessor shall carry liability insurance and shall name Tenant as an additional insured on 

said policy. Liability insurance shall be with a carrier of Lessor’s choice. In the event 

of casualty loss (fire, windstorm, etc.), Lessor shall have no obligations to replace or 

repair damage.  

(e) Tenant will be responsible for all normal living expenses, including utilities and trash 

pick-up, for such period of time as Tenant shall remain a resident of the Property.  

(f) Tenant is prohibited from, at any time, allowing anyone other than Richard L. Lint and 

_________________ Lint from residing or living on the Property. This exclusion 

expressly prohibits Richard L. Lint from leasing the Property and/or from allowing 

any other person (other than ____________ Lint) to live, reside, or stay on the 

Property. Short-term visits by any individual [“short-term” defined as no more than 

any fourteen (14) day period within any twelve (12) month period] shall not be a 

violation of this provision.  

(g) Tenant will be responsible for maintaining small repairs, cleaning, and small 

maintenance, such as fixing loose handles, changing lightbulbs, and interior painting 

or redecorating for appearance purposes. Tenant will also be responsible for 

maintaining, repairing and/or replacing kitchen appliances and/or laundry appliances 

used by Tenant. Lessor has no responsibility for repair or replacement of structure, 

plumbing, electrical, or HVAC equipment, exterior walls, or roof.  

(h) Tenant is entitled to live in the home located on the Property, after payment of initial 

One Dollar ($1.00) rent, rent free until (a) he is no longer able to live there on his own 

or (b) a term of five (5) years (60 months) from the start of this Lease, whichever date 

occurs first. At such time Tenant is no longer physically or mentally able to live in the 



home on his own or at the end of sixty (60) months, he shall vacate the premises and 

Lessor will have full rights to possession of the home. At the time Tenant turns over 

possession of the home, he and his son, _____________ Lint, will remove all contents 

within ninety (90) days of the date he vacates the home, taking with them all personal 

belongings that they wish to retain and remove. Anything remaining in the home after 

the end of said ninety (90) day period will be determined to be of no value, will be 

considered trash and not abandoned property, and can be treated as trash to be 

disposed of by Lessor as Lessor sees fit.  

6. Faxed or E-mailed Signatures. A faxed or e-mailed signature is binding and enforceable.  

7. Complete Contract. It is expressly agreed that all terms and conditions of this Lease 

Agreement being paragraph 1-7, inclusive, are included herein, and no verbal agreements 

of any kind shall be binding upon the parties, and this Lease Agreement shall be binding 

upon the parties hereto, their heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.  

 

Signatures on following page. 

 



Offer by Lessor  □ Paragraphs 1-7  

“LESSOR”  

Elkhart Community School Corporation  

Dated: ______________________  By: ____________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________  

Address: 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana

 

  

 

Acceptance by Tenant  □ as submitted by Lessor  

As Tenant of the real estate described hereinabove, I accept the foregoing Lease Agreement 

this ____ day of ______________, 2016, and I do hereby agree to lease the above-described real 

estate in accordance with the terms and conditions specified herein.  

Tenant acknowledges receipt of a signed copy of this Agreement.  

“TENANT”  

Dated: ______________________  By: _____________________________________  
Richard L. Lint 

 

Prepared by: W. Douglas Thorne (16998-20) 

Executive Director of Personnel and Legal Services 

2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana, 46514 



CONTRACT TO PURCHASE 

Date: ______________, 2016  

The undersigned, Elkhart Community School Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Purchaser”), hereby agrees to purchase from Richard L. Lint (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Seller”) the real estate commonly known as 1000 McPherson Street, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, 

more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Property”), upon the following terms and conditions:  

1. Purchase Price. ____________________________________________________  

Dollars ($______________).  

(a) Earnest Money Deposit. Upon signature of this Contract, One Thousand Dollars 

($1,000.00) shall be paid to Seller as an earnest money deposit (the “Earnest 

Money Deposit”). The Earnest Money Deposit shall be held by Seller and applied 

to the Purchase Price at the Closing of this transaction, said purchase to be upon 

the following terms and conditions in accordance with paragraph 1(b), below.  

(b) Balance of Purchase Price. The balance of the Purchase Price shall be paid at 

time of Closing by the payment of 

_______________________________________ Dollars ($_____________) in 

cash at Closing, and delivery of Warranty Deed to Purchaser.  

2. Property Included in Sale. As follows: The land, buildings, and all fixtures and 

improvements located on the Property at the time of Closing.  



3. Closing, Possession Date and Insurance After Closing. During any period of time 

after Closing the Seller occupies any buildings or any portion or allow any of his 

personal property to remain on the Property, he will maintain insurance for any 

property of his in the building(s). This transaction is to be closed on or after 

_________________, 2016. Closing will occur within fourteen (14) days of Purchaser 

receiving title commitment indicating unencumbered title in the name of Seller.  

4. Inspection. Purchaser is waiving all inspections of the Property and said Property is 

being purchased “AS IS, WHERE IS.” No pre-inspection required.  

5. Further Conditions. This offer and Closing are contingent upon the following 

conditions:   

(a) Seller agrees to remove any and all of Seller’s contents from inside the home prior 

to and for a period of ninety (90) days after surrendering possession to Purchaser, 

and any property not so removed shall be of zero (0) value and may be treated by 

Purchaser as valueless. It is understood “possession” delivery date is an 

undetermined date in the future, and this Contract shall remain in existence until 

ninety (90) days after possession delivery date.  

(b) After Closing, Seller will maintain the Property, only so long as he continues to 

reside in the home located on the Property. Maintenance includes any major 

repairs or replacements necessary to keep the home located on the Property in 

living condition, such as repairing or replacing roof, furnace, air conditioning, 

and/or structural issues. At any time, as an alternative to making said repairs, 

Seller is free to vacate the Property. Seller will be responsible for giving notice to 



Purchaser of the anticipated need for repair or replacement at such time as Seller 

becomes aware of said need, and Seller shall, after sending said notice, have two (2) 

weeks to enter into a contract with an independent contractor to provide said repair 

or replacement, to be scheduled at the earliest date available to said independent 

contractor. A contract shall be between the independent contractor and Seller, and 

upon completion of the work, Seller shall be responsible for payment to said 

independent contractor. The only purpose of giving Purchaser notice is for 

Purchaser to be aware of the work Seller is having done. Anyone performing work 

must have adequate liability insurance and must name Seller and Purchaser as 

additional insureds. Contractor must agree in writing that his work is not subject to 

any mechanic’s lien rights on the Property.  

(c) Purchaser shall maintain the McPherson Street sidewalks in front of the residence 

located on the Property, including the public sidewalk, and shall be responsible for 

snow removal thereon, provided snow removal obligation shall only be on 

weekdays, not holidays or weekends. Snow removal shall be performed by 

Purchaser’s maintenance employees and/or contract snow removal service.  

(d) Purchaser’s insurance requirements for coverage on the improvements located on 

the Property shall be with an insurance carrier of Purchaser’s choice, and all 

proceeds from any loss shall be payable to Purchaser alone for any damage or loss 

of any improvement. Purchaser shall carry liability insurance and shall name Seller 

as an additional insured on said policy. Liability insurance shall be with a carrier of 

Purchaser’s choice.  



(e) Seller will be responsible for all normal living expenses, including utilities and 

trash pick-up, for such period of time as Seller shall remain a resident of the 

property.  

(f) Seller is prohibited from at any time allowing anyone other than Richard L. Lint 

and ______________ Lint from residing or living on the Property. This exclusion 

expressly prohibits Richard L. Lint from leasing the Property and/or from allowing 

any person other than Richard L. Lint or _______________ Lint to live, reside, or 

stay on the Property. Short-term visits by any individual [“short-term” defined as 

no more than any fourteen (14) day period within any twelve (12) month period] 

shall not be a violation of this provision.  

(g) Seller will be responsible for maintaining small repairs, cleaning, and small 

maintenance, such as fixing loose handles, changing lightbulbs, and interior 

painting or redecorating for appearance purposes. Seller will also be responsible 

for maintaining, repairing and/or replacing kitchen appliances and/or laundry 

appliances used by Seller. Purchaser has no responsibility for repair or replacement 

of structure or mechanicals (electric, plumbing, HVAC) on the Property.  

(h) Seller is entitled to live in the home located on the Property rent free until he is no 

longer able to live there on his own or for a period of five (5) years, whichever is 

shorter. At such time Seller, Richard L. Lint, is no longer physically or mentally 

able to live in the home on his own, he shall vacate the premises and Purchaser 

will have full rights to possession of the home. At the time Seller turns over 

possession of the home, he and any person residing with Seller will remove all 



contents within ninety (90) days of the date Seller vacates the home, taking with 

them all personal belongings that they wish to retain and remove. Anything 

remaining in the home after the end of said ninety (90) day period will be 

determined to be of no value, will be considered trash and not abandoned property, 

and can be treated as trash to be disposed of by Purchaser as Purchaser sees fit.  

6. Property Included in Sale. The above purchase price includes all improvements 

permanently installed and affixed on the Property, but will not include, and Seller will 

have removed prior to vacating the premises at Seller’s expense, any waste material, 

junk, paint, chemicals, or petroleum products.  

7. Prorations. The following prorations shall be made between Seller and Purchaser on 

the date of the Closing of this transaction:  

(a) Taxes. The real property taxes for the calendar year, payable the next year, shall be 

prorated based upon the currently available assessments, applicable credits and last 

published tax rates. Purchaser shall be responsible for all taxes regardless of credits 

authorized following the closing. Seller is to be charged all other taxes and 

assessments which are now a lien against the real estate.  

8. Deed and Evidence of Title and Lease. At the time of Closing, Seller agrees to 

execute and deliver to Purchaser a Warranty Deed, free and clear of all liens and 

encumbrances but subject to all covenants, restrictions, easements, and ordinances of 

record. Seller and Purchaser at Closing will execute a written Lease in the form 

attached hereto, which will include the terms of paragraph 5 herein.  



Within a reasonable time prior to Closing, Seller is to furnish, at Seller’s expense, 

a commitment for an Owner’s Title Insurance Policy equal to the Purchase Price 

insuring merchantable title subject to standard title exceptions. Should additional time 

be required for making or continuing such Title Policy or for correcting defects of title, 

a reasonable time shall be given. Seller will pay for the title insurance policy to be 

issued at Closing.  

9. Risk of Loss. At the time of Closing, Seller agrees the Property and any improvements 

thereon shall be in the same condition as they are now, ordinary wear and tear 

excepted. Any damage caused by Seller to the Property and/or its improvements prior 

to delivery of possession to Purchaser shall be the sole responsibility of Seller. The 

risk of loss or damage to the Property and improvements until delivery of the deed is 

assumed by the Seller, and, if all or a substantial portion of said Property is so 

destroyed or damaged prior to Closing, this Contract may be rescinded at the election 

of Purchaser and this Contract shall be null and void. In such an event, any Earnest 

Money Deposit shall be returned promptly to the Purchaser. After Closing, risk of loss 

to the Property, but not Seller’s personal items (contents) shall transfer to Purchaser 

and Purchaser shall insure the Property. Seller shall be responsible for insuring his 

contents.  

10. Rights of Seller and Purchaser. The Earnest Money Deposit shall be promptly 

returned in full to the Purchaser in the event this offer is not accepted. If this offer is 

accepted, and Purchaser shall, without legal cause, fail or refuse to complete the 

purchase of said Property in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof, the 

Earnest Money Deposit shall not be returned to the Purchaser, and disposition thereof 



shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this Contract. If Seller defaults in 

the terms and conditions of paragraph 3 of this Contract, or if all of the conditions set 

forth in paragraph 3 and 8 herein have not been met within one hundred eighty (180) 

days of this offer being accepted, and Purchaser and Seller do not agree to a further 

extension of time, the Purchaser shall be entitled to return of the Earnest Money 

Deposit. Nothing in this Contract shall prevent either Purchaser or Seller from seeking 

enforcement of this Contract by specific performance or by any other remedies 

available at law to include but not be limited to attorney fees, provided they are 

otherwise entitled to such relief. In addition to Purchaser’s other remedies as set forth 

herein or available to Purchaser by law, Purchaser shall have the right to set off against 

any unpaid portion of the Purchase Price owed to Seller, described and to be delivered 

pursuant to paragraph 1 herein (“Purchase Price”), at Closing, an amount equal to any 

unpaid mortgage or lien amount owed by Seller which is a lien or cloud on title to the 

Property. Both Seller and any transferee of this Contract shall be subject to said right 

of set off. If either Seller or Purchaser commences a lawsuit with regard to this 

Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all reasonable expenses 

incurred, including reasonable attorney fees.  

11. Faxed or E-mailed Signatures. A faxed or e-mailed signature is binding and 

enforceable.  

12. Complete Contract. It is expressly agreed all terms and conditions of this Contract to 

Purchase being paragraph 1-14, inclusive, are included herein, and no verbal 

agreements of any kind shall be binding upon the parties, and this Contract shall be 



binding upon the parties hereto, their heirs, personal representatives, successors and 

assigns.  

13. Earnest Money. The Seller hereby acknowledges receipt of the Earnest Money 

Deposit in the amount of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00).  

14. Acceptance Deadline. This offer must be accepted within one (1) week of its signature 

by Purchaser or it is void and Seller shall, in such case, immediately return Earnest 

Money to Purchaser if Seller has received said money.  

 

Signatures on Following Page. 

 



Offer by Purchaser □ Paragraphs 1-14  

“PURCHASER” 

Elkhart Community School Corporation 

Dated:  ______________________ By: ______________________________________   

Title: _____________________________________  

Address: 
 

2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana 

 

Acceptance by Seller □ as submitted by Purchaser  

As Seller of the real estate described hereinabove, I accept the foregoing Contract to 

Purchase this ____ day of ______________, 2016, and I do hereby agree to sell and convey the 

above-described real estate in accordance with the terms and conditions specified herein.  

Seller acknowledges receipt of a signed copy of this Contract  

 

“SELLER”  

Dated: ______________________  By:  ______________________________________  
Richard L. Lint, Owner 



 
GDBA-10 

Proposed Revised Board Policy 

 

 
EMPLOYEES IN MISCELLANEOUS POSITIONS COMPENSATION P LAN  

 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for the positions below to 
be effective January 1, 2016.  In addition, the three percent (3%) employee contribution to PERF 
will be paid by Elkhart Community Schools. 

*    Hourly rate based on .001 of the certified teacher’s base salary 
 

POSITION YEARLY SALARY RANGE 
Radio Station Manager 47,860 – 71,105 
Radio Station Development Director 45,042 – 68,157 
Radio Station Business Account Manager  35,550 – 67,023 
Radio Station Program Director 35,550 – 54,694 
Radio Station Senior Reporter and Assignment Editor 30,711 – 44,969 

Section 1.    MISCELLANEOUS WAGE/SALARY SCHEDULE 

POSITION HOURLY WAGE 
RANGE 

Assistant Supervisor of Transportation 22.68 – 28.01 
Transportation Trainer/Dispatcher 18.90 – 22.08 
Food Service Truck Driver 15.17 – 18.02 
Food Service Receiving/Supply 15.17 – 18.02 
Evening Supervisor of Building Services 19.89 – 24.48 
Food Service Training Specialist 17.19 – 24.08 
Food Service Bids & Commodity Coordinator 16.37 – 25.58 
Executive Chef & Culinary Event Coordinator 16.37 – 25.58 
Quality Assurance Coordinator 18.90 – 22.08 
Production Coordinator 18.90 – 22.08 
Transportation Route/Driver Coordinator 18.90 – 22.08 
Adult/Community Education Non-Contract Teachers 31.43 *  
Building Community Education Coordinator 26.41 – 33.02 
Radio Station Staff Announcer 8.90 – 12.66 
Radio Station Development Assistant 10.35 – 16.56 
School Security Officer 22.43 
Title I/Funded Pupil/Program/Parent Support Person 18.87 – 27.48 
High School Parent/Community Liaison 18.87 – 27.48 
District Translator  18.87 – 27.48 
Evening Events Supervisor 14.28 
Asst. Site Coordinator - 21st Century Community Learning Center  14.00 
After-School Community Education Organized Activities Leader 14.00 
After-School Community Education Organized Activities Assistant 9.39 
Deaf/Hard of Hearing Educational Interpreter 15.53 – 29.00 
Early College Data Specialist 23.36 – 26.69 



2 

Radio Station Operations Manager 24,613 – 40,337 
Radio Station Morning Edition Host 27,933 – 43,970 
Radio Station Promotions Manager 28,730 – 42,748 
Radio Station Membership Manager 31,862 – 45,138 
Olweus Bullying Prevention Program Coordinator 41,107 – 55,616 
Energy Education Specialist 56,897 – 77,048 
Assistant Supervisor of Building Services 53,040 – 66,300 
Adult and Community Education Program Manager 61,200 – 71,400 
Data Specialist 36,247 – 56,959 
Communication Specialist 36,247 – 56,959 
School Psychologist Intern 35,520 
21st Century Community Learning Center Coordinator 2,500 (per semester) 
 
An hourly employee who is required to report to work to respond to an emergency outside of the 
employee’s regular work hours will be paid for a minimum of two (2) hours. 
 

May 10, 2016 June 14, 2016 





















 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

REVISED 

 

To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  June 14, 2016 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding retirement and 

severance benefits. 

 

b. New Certified Staff – We recommend the approval of the following new certified staff for 

employment in the 2016-17 school year: 

Sammuel Brown TBD/Elementary 

Aaron Fitz  Central/Math 

Wendy Goley  TBD/Elementary 

Abigail Kimbrell TBD/Elementary 

Rachel Mallo  TBD/Elementary 

Jennifer Summers Memorial/Science 

 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employees: 

Toni McDougal Supervisor of Special Education 41 Years of Service 

Martha Strickler Principal/Cleveland   19 Years of Service 

Bernadette Taylor Asst Principal/Memorial  11 Years of Service 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

Daniel Farison   Pierre Moran/Music 

Began:  8/17/09   Resign:  6/1/16 

Megan Farison   Memorial/Music 

Began:  8/13/14   Resign:  6/1/16 

Michelle Foster  Daly/Grade 5 

Began:  8/4/15   Resign:  6/1/16 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Lori Hoese   West Side/Math 

Began:  8/13/07   Resign:  6/1/16 

Derek Swartzendruber Central/Science 

Began:  1/4/16   Resign:  6/1/16 

Molly Wain   Riverview/Grade 1 

Began:  8/13/14   Resign:  6/1/16 

e. Parental Leave – We recommend a parental leave for the following employee: 

Megan Fitz   Pinewood/Grade 2 PEP 

Begin:  8/2/16   End:  5/26/1 

CLASSIFIED 

a. Agreement – We recommend approval of an agreement related to retirement and severance on a 

classified employee. 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

Gladys Ballard   Pierre Moran/Custodian 

Began: 10/16/06  Resign: 5/27/16  

Jeffrey Coyner   Building Services/Electrician 

Began:  3/29/01   Resign:  5/20/16 

   Antoinette Robinson   Hawthorne/Food Service 

   Began:  1/29/15   Resign: 5/26/16 

   Veronica Santana  Beck/Paraprofessional 

Began: 10/26/15  Resign: 6/1/16 

c. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees: 

Telitha Army   Beck/Food Service  

Began: 3/21/16   PE:  6/1/16 

Tamara Hockabout  Career Center/Secretary 

Began: 4/18/16   PE:  6/13/16 

Therese Kauffman  Beardsley/ Custodian 

Began: 3/28/16   PE:   5/30/16 

d. Termination: We recommend the termination of the following classified employee: 

Earlisha Booth                           Hawthorne/Food Service 

Began:  1/16/15                   Terminated:   6/14/16 

                                                                                           Board Policy GDPD Section 1, c., g. 



 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert haworth 

From:  W. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  June 14, 2016 

 

 

Addendum to Personnel Report 

 

Certified 
 

a. Administrative Appointment – The administration recommends confirmation of the following 

administrative appointment effective July 21, 2016: 

 

Jeff Komins Energy Education Specialist/Elementary Activities 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - Project Y
	Minutes - Work Session May 24 2016
	Minutes - Regular Meeting May 24 2016
	Minutes - WorkCommunity Session June 7 2016
	Minutes - WorkCommunity Session June 8 2016
	Resolution for Internal Controls
	Bid Recommendation 2016-2017 Detail Summary
	2016-17 Vendor Response overview
	Bid totals by category 2016-2017
	2016-2017 Bid recommendation Food
	2016-2017 Bid recommendation Commodities
	2016-2017 Bid recommendation Fresh Produce
	2016-2017 Bid recommendation Supplies
	2016-2017 Bid recommendation Bakery (FRESH)
	2016-2017 Bid recommendation Bakery (FROZEN)
	2016-2017 Bid recommendation Dairy
	2016-2017 Bid Comparison by year
	Commodity Comparison 2016-17
	Board Product Price Comparison 2016-2017
	Fundraisers
	Extra-Curricular Purchases memo
	Extra Curricular Request
	Board Policy DP
	New Course Proposals
	2016 - 2017 Board Meeting Schedule
	Resolution for McPherson St. Property with Exhibit A
	Contract Lease Agreement McPherson St. Property
	Contract to Purchase McPherson St. Property
	Board Policy GDBA-10
	Grant - Confirmation Hawthorne  GrapeSEED
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leave Report - Perkins
	Conference Leave Report
	Personnel Report
	Personnel Report Addendum

